/'Em AGENDA
MERIDIAN ? CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN

I OWN S H | P PLANNING COMMISSION - REGULAR MEETING
June 9, 2025 6:30 PM

CALL MEETING TO ORDER
ROLL CALL

PUBLIC REMARKS
APPROVAL OF AGENDA

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A. April 28,2025

A

6. COMMUNICATIONS
A. None

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS
A. SUP #25009 - Ace Hardware Outdoor Storage
B. PUD #25012 - Hulett Road Estate

8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
A. None

9. OTHER BUSINESS
A. Off-Street Parking - Sec. 86-758 - Parking Landscaping Discussion
B. Roosters - Sec. 86-368 — Rural Residential - Discussion

10. REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS
A. Township Board update
B. Liaison reports

11. PROJECT UPDATES

12. PUBLIC REMARKS

13. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS

14. ADJOURNMENT

Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact: Director of Community Planning and Development
Timothy R. Schmitt, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 or 517.853.4506 - Ten Day Notice is Required.

Meeting Location: 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 ~ —
A PRIME COMMUNITY

meridian.mi.us



AGENDA page 2

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
? PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING

June 9, 2025 6:30 PM

TOWN SHIP‘Y

TENTATIVE PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA

June 23, 2025
1. PUBLIC HEARINGS
A. None
2. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

A. SUP #25009 - Ace Hardware Outdoor Storage

B. PUD #25012 - Hulett Road Estate

C. Off-Street Parking - Sec. 86-758 - Landscaping Discussion
D. Roosters - Sec. 86-368 — Rural Residential - Discussion

3. OTHER BUSINESS
A. None

Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact: Director of Community Planning and Development
Timothy R. Schmitt, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 or 517.853.4506 - Ten Day Notice is Required.
Meeting Location: 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. v N PRIME COMMUNITY
meridian.mi.us



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN

REGULAR MEETING PLANNING COMMISSION
5000 Okemos Road, Okemos MI 48864-1198
517.853.4000, Central Fire Station-Community Room

Monday, April 28, 2025, 6:30 pm

PRESENT: Chair Shrewsbury, Vice Chair Snyder, Commissioners Brooks, Fowler, McConnell,
and McCurtis.

ABSENT: Commissioner Romback

STAFF: Principal Planner Shorkey

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER

Chair Shrewsbury called the April 28, 2025, regular meeting for the Meridian Township
Planning Commission to order at 6:33 pm.

2. ROLL CALL

Chair Shrewsbury called the roll of the Board. All Board members were present except for
Commissioner Romback.

3. PUBLIC REMARKS

None

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Chair Shrewsbury asked for approval of the agenda.

Commissioner McConnell moved to approve the April 28, 2025, Regular Planning
Commission meeting agenda. Seconded by Commissioner McCurtis. Motion passed
unanimously.

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Commissioner McCurtis moved to approve Minutes of the April 14, 2025 meeting with
minor amendments. Seconded by Commissioner McConnell. Motion passed unanimously.

6. COMMUNICATIONS
None

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS

None

8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

Page 1



A. SUP #25007 - Mister Car Wash Major SUP Amendment

Principal Planner Shorkey gave an overview of the discussion that has occurred to date. He
noted that there is in the packet, additional information provided by the applicant
regarding PFAS chemicals.

Commissioners discussed the current and potential uses of the property with regards to the
suitability of this request.

Commissioner McConnell moved to adopt the attached resolution approving Special
Use Permit #25007, a request to construct a drive-through car wash at 4800 Marsh
Road. Seconded by Commissioner McCurtis. Motion passed 5-1 (Brooks)

9. OTHER BUSINESS

A. Off-Street Parking - Sec 86-758 - Landscaping Discussion

Principal Planner Shorkey introduced the discussion item. He handed out copies of a
document about green infrastructure provided by Commissioner McConnell.

Commissioners asked Principal Planner Shorkey to return with more information about
how the Drain Commissioner’s requirements will affect potential green infrastructure
ordinances and asked for recommendations based on other municipality’s ordinances.

Commissioner McConnell answered questions about types of green infrastructure in
parking lots.

10. REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS
A. Township Board Update
The board approved SUP #25-03 at the last meeting, further discussion on the
Senior/Community Center. Upcoming Joint Board & Local Government meeting will
discuss Red Cedar River cleanup, MSU to Lake Lansing trail, and MSHDA Housing TIFF
district.
B. Liaison Reports

None

11. PROJECT UPDATES

List in packet. Principal Planner Shorkey offered an update on a project that expired, but that
the applicant may resubmit the request.

12. PUBLIC REMARKS

None
13. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS

None

Page 2



14. ADJOURNMENT
Chair Shrewsbury called for a motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:19 pm

Commissioner McConnell moved to adjourn the April 28, 2025 regular meeting of the
Planning Commission. Seconded by Vice-chair Snyder Motion passed unanimously.

Page 3



P
MERIDIAN ?

TOWN SHIP‘Y

To: Planning Commission

From: Brian Shorkey, Principal Planner

Date: June 9, 2025

Re: Special Use Permit #25009 (Okemos Ace Hardware), allow outdoor storage

and retail sales at an existing hardware store at 3544 Meridian Crossing Drive.

Okemos Ace Hardware (applicant) has requested a special use permit to allow outdoor storage and
retail sales at an existing hardware store at 3544 Meridian Crossing Drive, Okemos, MI 48864
(Subject Property). The store takes up three suites of the retail center located on the Subject
Property. The 2.7-acre site is zoned C-2 (Commercial).

Sec. 86-404 (e)(4) allows outdoor storage and retail sales in the C-2 district as a special use permit,
provided that the sales and storage area is fenced or otherwise enclosed in a permanent matter. The
fencing is not allowed to consist of chain link.

Zoning and Future Land Use

The Subject Property is located
in the C-2 - Commercial zoning
district. The same zoning
designation applies to the
adjacent properties to the west,
north, and east. The property to
the south is zoned is in Alaiedon |
Township and is similarly zoned c-2
as General Business District.

Subject L
Property

The C-2 district requires a
minimum of 100 feet of lot
frontage and 4,000 square feet l-)
of lot area for new lots. The

Subject Property totals
approximately 2.7 acres in size. Alaiedon
The Subject Property has a total Township
of approximately 107 feet of
frontage along Meridian
Crossings Drive. The Subject ZONING MAP
Property conforms to the C-2
zoning district.




Special Use Permit #25009 (Okemos Ace Hardware)
Planning Commission
Page 2

The Future Land Use Map from the
2023 Master Plan designates the
Subject Property in the
Commercial category. The same
designation applies to the
properties adjacent to the west,
north, and east. The Commercial
designation correlates with the C- Ea
2 Zoning District. The property to
the south is in Alaiedon Township
and is shown on their Future Land
Use map as the Jolly/Okemos
Roads Commercial Area.

-

‘Commercial

Subject
Property

Physical Features R
The subject property is developed

with a multi-tenant retail facility.
The entire building is
approximately 33,000 square feet.
As noted, the existing hardware
store takes up the three southernmost suites of the building.

FUTURE LAND USE

Streets & Traffic

The Subject Property has frontage on Jolly Road to the south, Okemos Road to the east, and Meridian
Crossings Drive to the northwest. The Subject Property can be accessed from all three streets.
Meridian Crossings Drive is two lanes wide and classified as a local street. Jolly Road and Okemos
Road are classified as principal arterials. The Township Pathway runs parallel to Jolly Road to the
south and Okemos Road to the east.

Staff Analysis

Special Use Permits are reviewed under Sec. 86-126 - Review Criteria in the Township’s Code of
Ordinances. Applications for Special Use Permits are reviewed for compliance with the standards in
Sec. 86-126, where applicable.

Sec. 86-126 - Review Criteria
1. The project is consistent with the intent and purposes of this chapter.

— A PRIME COMMUNITY
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.

meridian.mi.us



Special Use Permit #25009 (Okemos Ace Hardware)

Planning Commission
Page 3

As noted, outdoor sales and storage is
allowed as a Special Use Permit (SUP) in
conjunction with a retail center in the C-2
district. Approval of the SUP is conditional on
the installation of fencing (chain link is
unacceptable) to enclose the outdoor
material in a permanent manner.

2. The project is consistent with applicable
land use policies contained in the
Township's comprehensive development
plan of current adoption.

The Future Land Use map in the 2023
Comprehensive Plan designates the site as
Commercial. The C-2 zoning correlates with
designation.

Picture #1 - Ace Hardware - East Side

3. The project is designed, constructed, operated, and maintained so as to be harmonious and
appropriate in appearance with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity and that
such a use will not change the essential character of the same area.

The hardware store is in operation and the
outdoor storage is already in use on the
Subject Property. The pallets on the east side
of the building are behind a metal fence and
obscured from view (Picture #1). The pallets
on the south side of the building are in the
open on the sidewalk and do not comply with
the fencing requirements for outdoor storage
(Picture #2).

4. The project will not adversely affect or be
hazardous to existing neighboring uses.

A site visit conducted by Staff confirmed that
the material being stored outside consists of
bags of soil and compost, as well as outdoor
chairs and firewood on the south side. These

Picture #2 - Ace Hardware - South Side

materials are not hazardous and not expected to adversely affect neighboring uses.

5. The project will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of surrounding properties or the

community.

— A PRIME COMMUNITY
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.

meridian.mi.us



Special Use Permit #25009 (Okemos Ace Hardware)
Planning Commission
Page 4

The hardware store is in operation and if approved, the outdoor storage is not expected to affect their
operation.

6. The project is adequately served by public facilities, such as existing roads, schools, stormwater
drainage, public safety, public transportation, and public recreation, or that the persons or
agencies responsible for the establishment of the proposed use shall be able to provide any such
service.

The existing hardware store is served. If approved, the SUP will not affect any of the services.

7. The project is adequately served by public sanitation facilities if so designed. If on-site sanitation
facilities for sewage disposal, potable water supply, and stormwater are proposed, they shall be
properly designed and capable of handling the longterm needs of the proposed project.

The existing hardware store is served. If approved, the SUP will not affect any of the services.

8. The project will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, and equipment and conditions
of operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property, or the general welfare by reason
of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare, or odors.

A site visit conducted by Staff confirmed that the materials being stored on the site are nonhazardous.
No detrimental environmental affects were observed by Staff during the site visit.

9. The project will not directly or indirectly have a substantial adverse impact on the natural
resources of the Township, including, but not limited to, prime agricultural soils, water recharge
areas, lakes, rivers, streams, major forests, wetlands, and wildlife areas.

The Subject Property is developed and if approved, the SUP is not expected to have any affect on any
natural areas in the Township.

Planning Commission Options
The Planning Commission may approve, approve with conditions, or deny the special use permit. A
resolution will be provided at a future meeting.

Attachments

1. Special Use Permit Application and supporting documents
2. Property survey, dated November 14, 2024

— A PRIME COMMUNITY
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.

meridian.mi.us



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT
5151 MARSH ROAD, OKEMOS, M| 48864

PLANNING DIVISION PHONE: (517) 853-4560, FAX: (517) 853-4095

SPECIAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION

Before submitting this application for review, an applicant may meet with the Director of Community
Planning and Development to discuss the requirements for a special use permit and/or submit a
conceptual plan for review to have preliminary technical deficiencies addressed prior to submittal of the
application. If the property or land use is located in the following zoning districts RD, RC, RCC, RN then
the applicant must meet with the Planning Director to discuss technical difficulties before filing a formal
application.

Part |
A.

Applicant _Riverstone Ace, LLC, d/b/a Okemos Ace Hardware
Address of Applicant ichi :

Telephone - Work 517.351.9258  Home Fax Email _ cuermerin@marincommersatcom
Interest in property (circle one): Owner Tenant' Option Other
(Please attach a list of all persons with an ownership in the property.)

Site address / location / parcel number 3544 Meridian Crossing Drive, Suites 180, 160, and 150

Legal description (please attach if necessary)

Current zoning c-2
Use for which permit is requested / project name _Outdoor/open air retail sales at Okemos Ace Hardware
Corresponding ordinance number _ Sec. 86-404(e)(4)

Developer (if different than applicant)

Address

Telephone — Work Home Fax

Architect, Engineer Planner or Surveyor responsible for design of project if different from applicant:
Name KEBS, Inc., Engineers

Address 2116 Haslett Road, Haslett, M 48840

Telephone — Work 517.339.1014 Home Fax

Acreage of all parcels in the project: Gross Net

Explain the project and development phases:

Total number of:

Existing: structures bedrooms offices parking spaces carports ____ garages
Proposed: structures bedrooms offices parking spaces carports ____ garages
Square footage: existing buildings proposed buildings
Usable Floor area:  existing buildings proposed buildings

If employees will work on the site, state the number of full time and part time employees working per shift
and hours of operation:

Existing Recreation: Type Acreage
Proposed Recreation: Type Acreage
Existing Open Space: Type Acreage
Proposed Open Space: Type Acreage

Page 1



If Multiple Housing:  n/a

Total acres of property

Acres in floodplain Percent of total

Acres in wetland (not in floodplain) Percent of total

Total dwelling units

Dwelling unit mix: Number of single family detached:  for Rent Condo
Number of duplexes: for Rent Condo
Number of townhouses: for Rent Condo
Number of garden style apartments: for Rent Condo
Number of other dwellings: for Rent Condo

The following support materials must be submitted with the application:

o~ 0N~

Nonrefundable Fee.

Legal Description of the property.

Evidence of fee or other ownership of the property.

Site Plan containing the information listed in the attachment to this application.

Architectural sketches showing all sides and elevations of the proposed buildings or structures,
including the project entrance, as they will appear upon completion. The sketches should be
accompanied by material samples or a display board of the proposed exterior materials and
colors.

A Traffic Study, prepared by a qualified traffic engineer, based on the most current edition of
Evaluating Traffic Impact Studies: A Recommended Practice for Michigan Communities,
published by the State Department of Transportation.

a. A traffic assessment will be required for the following:
1) New special uses which could, or expansion or change of an existing special use
where increase in intensity would, generate between 50 to 99 directional trips
during a peak hour of traffic.

2) All other special uses requiring a traffic assessment as specified in the Township
Code of Ordinances, Chapter 86, Article 1V, Division 2.
b. A traffic impact study will be required for the following:
1) New special uses which would, or expansion or change of an existing special use

where increase in intensity would, generate over 100 directional trips or more
during a peak hour of traffic, or over 750 trips on an average day.

2) All other special uses requiring a traffic assessment as specified in the Township
Code of Ordinances, Chapter 86, Article IV, Division 2.

Natural features assessment which includes a written description of the anticipated impacts on the
natural features at each phase and at project completion that contains the following:

a. An inventory of natural features proposed to be retained, removed, or modified. Natural
features shall include, but are not limited to, wetlands, significant stands of trees or
individual trees greater than 12 inches dbh, floodways, floodplains, waterbodies, identified
groundwater vulnerable areas, slopes greater than 20 percent, ravines, and vegetative
cover types with potential to sustain significant or endangered wildlife.

b. Description of the impacts on natural features.
C. Description of any proposed efforts to mitigate any negative impacts.

The natural features assessment may be waived by the Director of Community Planning and
Development in certain circumstances.

Page 2



Any other information specified by the Director of Community Planning and Development which is
deemed necessary to evaluate the application.

In addition to the above requirements, for zoning districts, RD, RC, RCC, RN, and CV and Group
Housing Residential Developments the following is required:

1. Existing and proposed contours of the property at two foot intervals based on United States
Geological Survey (USGS) data.

2. Preliminary engineering reports in accordance with the adopted Township water and sewer
standards, together with a letter of review from the Township Engineer.

3. Ten copies of a report on the intent and scope of the project including, but not limited to: Number,

size, volume, and dimensions of buildings; number and size of living units; basis of calculations of
floor area and density and required parking; number, size, and type of parking spaces;
architectural sketches of proposed buildings.

4, Seven copies of the project plans which the Township shall submit to local agencies for review
and comments.

In addition to the above requirements, a special use application in zoning district RP requires the following
material as part of the site plan:

1. A description of the operations proposed in sufficient detail to indicate the effects of those
operations in producing traffic congestion, noise, glare, air pollution, water pollution, fire hazards
or safety hazards or the emission of any potentially harmful or obnoxious matter or radiation.

2. Engineering and architectural plans for the treatment and disposal of sewerage and industrial
waste tailings, or unusable by-products.
3. Engineering and architectural plans for the handling of any excessive traffic congestion, noise,

glare, air pollution, or the emission of any potentially harmful or obnoxious matter or radiation.

In addition to the above requirements, a special use application for a use in the Floodway Fringe of
zoning district CV requires the following:

1. A letter of approval from the State Department of Environmental Quality.
A location map including existing topographic data at two-foot interval contours at a scale of one
inch representing 100 feet.

3. A map showing proposed grading and drainage plans including the location of all public drainage
easements, the limits, extent, and elevations of the proposed fill, excavation, and occupation.
4, A statement from the County Drain Commissioner, County Health Department, and Director of

Public Works and Engineering indicating that they have reviewed and approved the proposal.

In addition to the above requirements, a special use application for a use in the Groundwater Recharge
area or zoning district CV requires the following:

1. A location map including existing topographic data at two-foot interval contours.
A map showing proposed grading and drainage plans including the location of all public drainage
easements, the limits and extent of the proposed fill, excavation, and occupation.

3. A statement from the County Drain Commissioner, County Health Department, and Director of
Public Works and Engineering indicating that they have reviewed and approved the proposal.

In addition to the above requirements, the Township Code of Ordinances, Article VI, should be reviewed
for the following special uses: group housing residential developments, mobile home parks,
nonresidential structures and uses in residential districts, planned community and regional shopping
center developments, sand or gravel pits and quarries, sod farms, junk yards, sewage treatment and
disposal installations, camps and clubs for outdoor sports and buildings greater than 25,000 square feet
in gross floor area.

Page 3



Part Il SUP REQUEST STANDARDS
Township Code of Ordinances, Section 86-126

Applications for Special Land Uses will be reviewed with the standards stated below. An application that
complies with the standards stated in the Township Ordinance, conditions imposed pursuant to the
Ordinance, other applicable Ordinances, and State and Federal statutes will be approved. Your
responses to the questions below will assist the Planning Commission in its review of your application.

(1) The project is consistent with the intent and purposes of this chapter.

(2) The project is consistent with applicable land use policies contained in the Township's Master Plan of
current adoption.

(3) The project is designed, constructed, operated, and maintained so as to be harmonious and
appropriate in appearance with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity and that such a
use will not change the essential character of the same area.

(4) The project will not adversely affect or be hazardous to existing neighboring uses.
(5) The project will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of surrounding properties or the community.

(6) The project is adequately served by public facilities, such as existing roads, schools, stormwater
drainage, public safety, public transportation, and public recreation, or that the persons or agencies
responsible for the establishment of the proposed use shall be able to provide any such service.

(7) The project is adequately served by public sanitation facilities if so designed. If on-site sanitation
facilities for sewage disposal, potable water supply, and storm water are proposed, they shall be
properly designed and capable of handling the longterm needs of the proposed project.

(8) The project will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, and equipment and conditions of
operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property, or the general welfare by reason of
excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare, or odors.

(9) The project will not directly or indirectly have a substantial adverse impact on the natural resources of
the Township, including, but not limited to, prime agricultural soils, water recharge areas, lakes, rivers,
streams, major forests, wetlands, and wildlife areas.

Part lll

| (we) hereby grant permission for members of the Charter Township of Meridian’s Boards and/or Commissions,
Township staff member(s) and the Township’s representatives or experts the right to enter onto the above
described property (or as described in the attached information) in my (our) absence for the purpose of gathering
information including but not limited to the taking and the use of photographs.

X Yes (] No (Please check one)

By the signature(s) attached hereto, | (we) certify that the information provided within this application and
accompanying documentation is, to the best of my (our) knowledge, true and accurate

Lawa O Ganoveck, 4.29.25
Signature of/Apglicant Date
Laura J. Genovich (P72278), counsel for applicant

Type/Print Name

Fee: $500.00 Received by/Date:

Page 4



Special Use Permit Application Attachment

Site Plan Requirements Per Section 86-124(c)(4)
A site plan, drawn to a legible scale, containing the following information where applicable:
a. Boundaries of the subject property.
b. Total area of the subject property.
c. Location of all existing and proposed structures.
d. Approximate location and distance of all structures within 100 feet of the subject property.
e. Uses of existing and proposed buildings, on the subject site.
f. Proposed means of vehicular and pedestrian ingress and egress to the subject property.

g. Public and private roads and streets, rights-of-way, and easements, indicating names and widths, which
abut or cross the site.

h. Existing and proposed parking spaces, and vehicular and pedestrian circulation patterns.

i. The buildable area of the subject property indicating all required setbacks, yards and open space.

j-  Zoning classification of the subject and adjacent properties.

k. Existing and proposed fencing, screening, landscaping, and buffers.

I.  Location and sizes of existing utilities including power lines and towers, both above and below the ground.
m. Amount and location of all impervious surfaces.

n. The verified boundaries of all natural water features and required setback lines.

Page 5



SUPPLEMENT TO SPECIAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION

Applicant: Riverstone Ace, LLC d/b/a Okemos Ace Hardware
Location: 3544 Meridian Crossing Drive

Introductory Statement

This Application is filed pursuant to Section 86-404(e)(4) of the Zoning Ordinance, which requires
a special use permit for the following use in the C-2 zoning district:

Open air business uses, such as retail sales of nursery stock, lawn furniture,
playground equipment, and garden supplies, provided the total sales and storage
area is fenced (chain link shall not be acceptable) or otherwise enclosed in a
permanent manner.

The Applicant will be operating a retail use permitted by right on the subject property (specifically,
an Ace Hardware store). A special use permit is required only for the “open air”/outdoor retail sales
areas. As shown on the site plan, the Applicant intends to place retail products (such as mulch, ice

melt, patio furniture, etc.) in three locations near the building. All three locations are paved and
will be fenced or otherwise enclosed as follows:

e The outdoor space adjacent to the building will be enclosed with an approximately four-
foot tall, black metal straight-bar architectural style fence.

e The other two outdoor spaces will be enclosed with wooden beams.

There will be no alterations to the property’s natural features to accommodate these outdoor retail
areas.

Supplemental Answers to Part I:

B. Legal Description of Property

Units 1, 2 and 3 of Meridian Crossing, a Condominium according to the Moster
Deed recorded in Liber 3189, Page 576, as amended by First Amendment to Master
Deed recorded in Liber 336.3, Page 880 and designated as Ingham County
Subdivision Pion No. 218, together with rights in the general common elements

and the limited common elements as shown on the Master Deed as described in Act
59 of the Public Acts of 1978, as amended.

1. On-Site Employees

As noted above, the principal use of the property as a retail store is permitted by
right. This Application relates solely to the outdoor retail sales areas.



For the retail store as a whole, the Applicant anticipates employing 10-12
employees. The store’s hours of operation are 8:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. on Mondays
through Saturdays and 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. on Sundays.

L. Support Materials

1. Nonrefundable fee: enclosed.
2. Legal description of property: see above.

3. Evidence of fee or other ownership of the property: see attached Memorandum of
Lease.

4. Site plan: see attached.

5. Architectural sketches of structures: no structures are proposed for the open
air/outdoor retail sales areas.

6. Traffic study: Because of the nature of the special use request, the Applicant submits
that a traffic study is not required. The open air/outdoor retail sales area will not
generate traffic separate from the permitted retail land use.

7. Natural features assessment. Because of the nature of the special use request, the
Applicant submits that a natural features assessment is not required. The open
air/outdoor retail sales area will not alter any natural features of the property as it
will be located on existing paved parking lot areas.

Compliance with Section 86-126
The proposal meets all standards outlined in Section 86-126 of the Zoning Ordinance.
(1) The project is consistent with the intent and purposes of this chapter.

The intent of Chapter 86 is to regulate land use to promote orderly development and ensure
compatibility within the community. The C-2 (Community Commercial) zoning district
permits retail uses by right and allows open-air sales with a special use permit under
Section 86-404(e)(4). This proposal integrates outdoor retail displays as an accessory to
the Ace Hardware store. It supports the chapter’s purpose by enhancing a permitted use
without disrupting the established commercial area.

(2) The project is consistent with applicable land use policies contained in the
Township's comprehensive development plan of current adoption.

The Township’s Master Plan encourages commercial development in C-2 districts to serve
local needs efficiently. The addition of outdoor sales for items like mulch, salt, and patio



furniture is consistent with the Master Plan and promotes compatible commercial growth
without altering the planned character of the area.

(3) The project is designed, constructed, operated, and maintained so as to be
harmonious and appropriate in appearance with the existing or intended
character of the general vicinity and that such a use will not change the
essential character of the same area.

The proposed outdoor sales areas meet the ordinance’s fencing standards and will blend
with the existing Ace Hardware storefront. The project requires no new construction and
integrates with the commercial character of Meridian Crossings.

(4) The project will not adversely affect or be hazardous to existing neighboring
uses.

The outdoor sales areas pose no adverse impacts or hazards to neighboring properties
within the Meridian Crossings development. As discussed above, traffic will not increase
beyond the store’s current operations, and the fencing ensures a neat, contained appearance.

(5) The project will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of surrounding
properties or the community.

The addition of outdoor retail sales enhances the Ace Hardware store’s offerings,
potentially increasing customer visits to Meridian Crossings and benefiting nearby
businesses. The proposal requires no infrastructure changes and contributes positively to
the community’s economic welfare.

(6) The project is adequately served by public facilities, such as existing roads,
schools, stormwater drainage, public safety, public transportation, and public
recreation, or that the persons or agencies responsible for the establishment of
the proposed use shall be able to provide any such service.

The site has established infrastructure, including roads, stormwater drainage, and public
safety services, all of which are sufficient to support the store and this limited addition. The
outdoor sales areas place no additional demands on these public facilities.

(7) The project is adequately served by public sanitation facilities if so designed.
If on-site sanitation facilities for sewage disposal, potable water supply, and
stormwater are proposed, they shall be properly designed and capable of
handling the long-term needs of the proposed project.

The outdoor sales areas require no new sanitation facilities. The use of existing pavement
requires no changes to stormwater management.

(8) The project will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, and
equipment and conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any persons,



property, or the general welfare by reason of excessive production of traffic,
noise, smoke, fumes, glare, or odors.

The outdoor displays of retail goods will not produce any traffic, noise, smoke, fumes,
glare, or odors.

(9) The project will not directly or indirectly have a substantial adverse impact on
the natural resources of the Township, including, but not limited to, prime
agricultural soils, water recharge areas, lakes, rivers, streams, major forests,
wetlands, and wildlife areas.

No natural features will be altered, as the outdoor sales areas are confined to existing paved
surfaces. There is no impact on soils, water resources, or wildlife.

38571:00001:201263738-1



MERIDIAN CROSSINGS * ACE RIVERSTONE ¢ Page3

LEASE ~ MERIDIAN CROSSINGS

I ARTICLE I: BASIC LEASE PROVISIONS & ENUMERATION OF EXHIBITS |
1.1 Basic Lease Provisions: DATE: May 10, 2024
[ LANDLORD INFORMATION |

NAME: High Street Investments, LLC, a Michigan limited liability
company, 1329 N. Main Street, Ann Arbor, MI 48104

| TENANT INFORMATION B
NAME: RIVERSTONE ACE, LLC
ADDRESS: 1111 MICHIGAN AVENUE SUITE 300, EAST LANSING, MI 48823
TRADE NAME: OKEMOS ACE HARDWARE (OR SUCH OTHER SIMILAR NAME APPROVED BY ACE
HARDWARE)
PHONE: 517.351.9258
EMAIL: cutler.martin@martincommercial.com
MAILING ADDRESS: (] At Premises X At Above Address
TYPE OF OWNERSHIP: Limited liability company
PREMISES LOCATION |
Shopping Center: Meridian Crossings
Building Address: 3544 Meridian Crossing Drive
Suite Identification: Suites 180, 160, and 150
City/State/Zip: Okemos, Michigan 48864
Approx. Square Feet: 11,616
| TERMS AND DEFINITIONS
Initial Term: Eighty-Eight (88) months from the Commencement Date.
Renewal Terms: Two (2) Renewal Terms of Sixty (60) months each, if exercised.
Lease Term: The Initial Term, plus any Renewal Terms (if any), unless earlier

terminated per the Lease’s terms.

Anticipated Delivery Suites 150 and 180 on June 1, 2024; Suite 160 on or

Date before September 1, 2024

Construction Period (i) 150 days after delivery of Suites 150 and 180, or (ii) the later of: 60 days
after delivery of Suite 160 or November 1, 2024); There shall be a day-for-
day extension of the 60 day Construction Period for any part of the
Premises delivered after September 1, 2024

Commencement Date: Anticipated to be November 1, 2024, but shall be no more than 60 days after
delivery of all parts of the Premises.

Rent Commencement Anticipated to be March 1, 2025, but shall be four (4) calendar months from

Date: the Commencement Date.
Expiration Date: Last Day of the 88" full calendar month following the Commencement Date, plus any
Renewals.

Security Deposit: [

Make Ready charges: Special Construction/Finishing charges due from Tenant: $0.00.
Type of Business/Use: Hardware Store.






(As provided by Transnation Title Agency of Michigan, Commitment No.
123226LANS, dated January 23, 1014)

Item 10: Units are subject to the right of way in favor of Consumers
Power Company and the covenants, conditions and restrictions as recorded
in Liber 16MR, Page 73, said easement is plottable and is shown hereon.

ltem 11: Units are subject to Charter Township of Meridian easement as
recorded in Liber 1538, Page 451, said easement is plottable and is shown
hereon.

ltem 12: Units are subject to the Charter Township of Meridian easement
and the covenants, conditions and provisions as recorded in Liber 1538,
Page 455, said easement is plottable and is shown hereon. There is a bad
call in the easement description, easement is shown in corrected location.

ltem 13: Michigan Bell Telephone Company easement as recorded in Liber
1725, Page 695, does not cross the subject parcel and therefore is not
shown hereon.

Item 14: Michigan Bell Telephone Company eeasement as recorded in Liber
1725, Page 697, does not cross the subject parcel and therefore is not
shown hereon.

Item 15: Michigan Bell Telephone Company eeasement as recorded in Liber
1725, Page 698, does not cross the subject parcel and therefore is not
shown hereon.

ltem 16: Urits are subject to a Michigan Bell Telephone Company easement

as recorded in Liber 1862, Page 1018, said easement is plottable and is
shown hereon.

ltem 17: Units are subject to a Michigan Bell Telephone Company easement

as recorded in Liber 1862, Page 1044, said easement is plottable and is
shown hereon.

Item 18: Units are subject to the Michigan Bell Telephone easement and
the covenants, conditions and provisions as recorded in 1980, Page 325,
said easement is plottable and is shown hereon.

Item 19: Units are subject to the terms and conditions of a Storm Sewer

Agreement as recorded in Liber 2498, Page 314, agreement is not plottable

and is not shown hereon.

ltem 20: Units are subject to the Dedication Deed and Agreement of the
Smith, Jolly Ock Branch Drain as recorded in Liber 2508, Page 1105, said
easement is not plottable and therefore is not shown hereon.

ltem 21: Units are subject to a sanitary sewer easement to Meridian
Township as recorded in Liber 2856, Page 447, said easement is plottable
and is shown hereon,

ltem 22: Units are subject to an easement for watermain, sanitary sewer
and pathway purposes to Meridian Township, as recorded in Liber 2856,
Page 448, saoid easement is plottable and is shown hereon.

ltem 23! Units are subject to an easement for watermain to Meridian
Township, as recorded in Liber 2858, Page 449, said easement is plottable
and is shown hereon.

ltem 24: Units are subject to an easement for watermain to Meridian
Township, as recorded in Liber 2856, Page 450, said easement is plottable

“UNITS 1, 2, 3

Iltem 27: Units are subject to an easement for pathway purposes to Meridian
Township, as recorded in Liber 2907, Page 927, said easement is plottable and
is shown hereon.

ltem 28: Units are subject to an easement for pathway purposes as recorded
in Liber 2942, Page 414, said easement is plottable and is shown hereon.

ltem 29: Units are subject to the Declaration of Easements and the terms,
conditions and provisions thereof, as recorded in Liber 3010, Page 421, said
document is not plottable and is not shown hereon.

ltem 30: Units are subject to the terms, conditions and provisions as recited
in Agreement to Construct a Drain as recorded in Liber 3060, Page 282,
agreement is not plottable and is not shown hereon.

Item 31: Units are subject to the covenants, conditions and restrictions as
recorded in Liber 3191, Page 991, said document is not plottable and is not
shown hereon.

Iltem 32: Terms, conditions and provisions as recorded in the Drainage Facilities
Maintenance Agreement as recorded in Liber 3267, Page 157, do not cross the
subject units and therefore is not shown hereon.

Item 33: Terms, conditions and provisions as recorded in the Smith, Jolly Oak
Branch Drain Permit to Connect 07—022 as recorded in Liber 3276, Page 1243,
do not cross the subject units and therefore is not shown hereon.

Iltem 34: Terms, conditions and provisions as recorded in the Reciprocal
Easement Agreement as recorded in Liber 3299, Page 747, as amended in
Liber 3322, Page 28 and subsequent Affidavit recorded in Liber 3327, Page
1189, do not cross the subject units however does cross the private raod
easement and the approximate location is shown hereon.

Item 35: Eosement for pedestrian /bicycle pathway purposes to Meridian
Township, as recorded in Liber 3328, Page 581, does not cross the sub ject
units and therefore is not shown hereon.

ltem 36: Terms, conditions and provisions as recited in Easement for
Pedestrian/Bicycle Pathway as recorded in Liber 3328, Page 582, do not cross
the subject units and therefore is not shown hereon.

Item 37: Terms, conditions and provisions as recited in Easement for Water
Main as recorded in Liber 3328, Page 583 do not cross the subject units and
therefore is not shown hereon. '

Iltem 38: Easement for Watermain purposes to Meridian Township, as recorded
in Liber 3328, Page 584, does not cross the subject units, however does cross
the private road easement and is shown hereon.

ltem 39: Easement for Watermain purposes to Meridian Township, as
recorded in Liber 3329, Page 400, does not cross the subject units,
however does cross the private road easement and is shown hereon,

L)

10" PATHWAY EASEMENT
LIBER 2942, PA@E_

S0014'13"E
5.47

m

o~

\ A
N N Y

12346 g/

E &
LIBER

A

MENT
IP\QF "MERIQIA
8, \PA

i

A

1

1

15
T

260t 10,1810 M0 103

-l

e 8.

.
‘_4‘
N, 3 5 3
-
R Y -

ETBACK NE[ |

oy

RHANG. (T

~ TBUILDING

IG LL
EEA T N
GEN32

LIBER

20' WATER MAIN EASEMENT
LIBER 3328, PAGE 584 & |
LIBER 3329 PAGE 400

2640.12

98

CENTER OF SECTION

33, T4N, R1W
SCALE 1 ”» — 405 (vv\‘ /— 3
” | ——— ] & § a—
- : - LOCATION MAP
0 40 80 120 NO SCALE

CONSUMERS POWER COMPANY

EASEMENT LIBER 16MR, PAGE 67

(PER CONDO. DOCS.)

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

(As provided by Transnation Title Agency of Michgian, Commitment No. 123226LANS, dated January 23, 1014)
Units 1, 2 and 3 of Meridian Crossing, a Condominium according to the Master Deed recorded in Liber 3189,
Page 576, as amended by First Amendment to Master Deed recorded in Liber 3363, Page 880 and designated
as Ingham County Subdivision Plan No. 218, together with rights in the general common elements and the
limited common elements as shown on the Master Deed as described in Act 59 of the Public Acts of 1978,
as amended.

]
O

1. This plan was made at the direction of the parties named hereon and is intended
solely for their immediate use. Survey prepared from fieldwork performed in February 4, 2014,

2. All bearings and distances on the survey are record and measured unless otherwise noted. Bearings are
based on the East line of Meridian Crossing Condominium which is recorded to bear South.

3. All dimensions are in feet and decimals thereof.
4. No building tie dimensions are to be used for establishing the property lines.

S. There are no observable potential encroachments onto the subject property from adjoining lands, or from
the subject property onto adjoining lands, except as shown hereon.

6. There is no observable evidence of cemeteries on this site.

7. Units 1, 2 & 3 are subject to the general & limited common elements as shown on the condominium
documents.

8. The legal description described is the same property as insured in the Title Commitment.

ALTA/ACSM LAND TITLE SURVEY — TABLE "A” REQUIREMENTS:

ltem 2: Addresses of the surveyed property: 3536, 3544 and 3552 Meridian Crossing Drive, Okemos, M| 48864

ltem 3: Based on the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Developement, Federal Insurance Administration

= sh h ‘ ltem 40: Units are subject to the terms, conditions and provisions as . Flood Hazard Bou.ndory Map, Community No. 260093, Sheet Number 01’70 D, revised August 16, 2011, the
ond s shown hereon recited in the Assignmejnt of Rights as recorded in Instrur?went No. 30 ?,IE’E“CSS,‘,”SRD%’?SES‘E_’Q subject property is not located in a special flood hazard aread according to the map.
Item 235: Units are subject to an easement for watermain to Meridian 2012-004887, said document is not plottable and is not shown hereon. L=141.00’
Township, as recorded in Liber 2856, Page 458, said easement is plottable R=90.00" ltem 4: 6.71 Acres (292,673 square feet)
and is shown hereon. RO A AT
30" ?gggucg,sbngDE:;CssEgnﬁm 2—8.9_45 47 , I[tem 6b: Current building setback requirements (Per Approved Engineering Site plans):
ltem 26: Units are subject to an easement for watermain to Meridian ' ' HD:'1?7’92 Setback along Okemos Road: 155’ from centerline
Township, os recorded in Liber 2907, Page 918, said easement is plqt o l . T N44°52'54"E Setback along Jolly Road: 110 from centerline
and is shown hereon. LAt R ——— - T Setback along Jolly Oak Road: 50° from right—of—way
R AV LR - 4 \ o . g .
e T 2 : - Maximum Building Height: 35 feet
;’ Setback information was not provided by the insurer as required, therefore the information listed hereon
GENERAL COMMON ELEMENT g must by verified by the local governing agency.
................... Q
J ltem 7a: Shown on the survey map.
» O
g% LIMITED COMMON ELEMENT :i;%g%g, RV ALY ‘_‘é ltem 7b1: Shown on the survey map.
g:gggi;g,\ S Item 7c: Shown on the survey map.
= . - T
LEGEND N44°52'54"E | X/ 3 Item 8: Shown on the survey map.
" ‘ |
= DEED LINE = - £ Item 9: Parking:
N = DISTANCE NOT TO SCALE 3 | g Regular Parking Spaces: 311
N N «~ = FENCE - Barrier Free Parking Spaces: 15
” " = Total on—site Parking Spaces: 326
= ASPHALT 3 SUMERS POWER : : - - : ' :
_ WPANY EASEMENT  |t€m 11a: Utility information as shown was obtained from field observations only, and is subject to the
= CONCRETE 6MR, PAGE 73 Verification in the field by the appropriate authorities prior to use for construction.
= GRAVEL
— OVERHEAD WIRES ltem 13: Jolly & Okemos Roads are dedicated public roads, Meridian Crossing Drive is a private drive.
® = SANITARY MANHOLE Gi;EECISEO$Al:SgA$:MEN'TVE Iltem 16: Recent drive entranted were added along Okemos Road and Jolly Road and are shown heroen.
AGREEMENT "SOUTH DRIVE”
© = DRAINAGE MANHOLE lﬂlBB%% 3.’3%2227 '?Z%EE 21?83‘ tem 17: There is no observable evidence of proposed changes in street right of way lines. Recent drive
® = ELECTRIC MANHOLE entrances were added along Okemos Road and Jolly Road and are shown hereon.
0] = TELEPHONE MANHOLE ___8-,78_ Sx = oxisting Lol 5 ltem 18: There is no observable evidence of site used as a solid waste dump, sump, or sanitary landfill.
H = CATCHBASIN it G S - S PR 0.8 10.510.5N pace between €xI Srwd- = .
@ ' Zeweg*;’*”cégmm T IR Hsidewalk and building - T vl | i\ 'é ltem 19: There were no wetlands delineated on site at the time of this survey.
co = SANITARY CLEANOUT e % ClaT '7;';‘;; e . /|14'6" long on either side of 3=, LExisting Patio with [ 12
o = FIRE HYDRANT gEdRe A2 I2T N2 M Jentrance door Lg ‘lfence approx N ltem 21: KEBS, Inc. carries $1 million in professional liability insurance.
-0 |67'x11'8"
® = VALVE | 2
p’ = UTILITY POLE 1-STORY BRICK BUILDING y, fl‘:é'éé’* QEBJ].E'QA]]_QN..
_ 5 #3536 M%Fgl)g?é\l cho;_g.?wc DRIVE 0.7 *g; i To: George F. Eyde Family, LLC; WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, its successors and assigns;
X = LIGHT POLE ' - 2 | Transnation Title Agency and First American Title Insurance Company:
E. y:
— = GUY WIRE : N\,J‘ B | o
' — UTILTY PEDESTAL HEIGHT: 13.5" O B — - This is to certify that this map or plat and the survey on which it is based were made in accordance
= pIv 13 ) 1.3 LS | with the 2011 "Minimum Standard Detail Requirements for ALTA/ACSM Land Title Surveys,” jointly established
= TRANSFORMER 10.7'/19.7'&{13’ 1 1.9 ’1,:5’ ' ;[211.2’/11.2'/13.’1' 10.7'/10.7' 1.1 o \Q\” : and adopted by ALTA and NSPS, and includes Items 2, 3, 4, 6b, 7qa, 7b1, 7¢, 8, 9, 11q, 13, 18, 17, 18, 19
= ELECTRIC METER — = vv.,,:—-———’;ﬁ21;2.73‘_3_‘2‘:.>73' 12;2 “?;-;‘.:‘" —‘“'_ ;" P " and 21 of Table A thereof. The field work was completed on February 4, 2
= GAS METER / ' ' = 1 ﬁ ——
= WATER METER PRIVATE ROAD EASEMENT g o< / /o / / y
LIBER 3010 PAGE 421
— = SIGN (PER CONDO. DOCS.) \ rick R, Friestrom Date of Plat or Map:
. — POST Professional Surveyor No. 53497 ,
= =T L o g, REVISIONS COMMENTS P KEBS BNC ENGINEERING AND
DS = DOWN SPOUT S S SN L Nl At A L L R bbb b b e S S -1Either side of \\\\\\\\\\ OF M/c-””"z/, —— g 9 ® LAND SURVEYING
ry 1) . ATTITY %
® = WATER MANHOLE _. L L E T T T SR AB AT L §§\Q/ Yot |7 2116 HASLETT ROAD, HASLETT, Mi 48840
oo e e T T T T T \L B0 WIOHT OF WAY, LINE s S R 5&’;\ ERICK R. -5%'% PH. 517-339-1014 FAX. 517—339-8047
_ , s 1= o = et Yy , ez
® HANDHOLE NOOT413'W 15.65” o] AT N @ £/ FrisTROM 1% 2 Marahall Offics
N - : Y e S5l erorssow g S Ph. 268-781-9800
B R §§ DRAWN BY  SLH SECTION 33, T4N, R2W
T AAAAA Z, -.‘. 497 i $
§E§T,*g‘$5§§,_ R0 ., @ i %;Pé';gég{é@@\\\:@ FIELD WORK BY ~ NAW JOB NUMBER:
1] \
@-'/__4, — e __R18_8.2'________DQ —_— — gog;'l-ol 1 /;% C1(')RNE§1 I?////f‘flimmmzm\m.\\\\\\\ SHEET 1 oF 1 87507.ALT
ECTION 4N, R1W ;
- T O T Y PN i e - d h



jason.brunette
Polygon

jason.brunette
Polygon

jason.brunette
Polygon

jason.brunette
Polygon

jason.brunette
Polygon

jason.brunette
Polygon

jason.brunette
Callout
Existing Patio with fence approx 67'x11'8"

jason.brunette
Callout
Space between existing sidewalk and building - 14'6" long on either side of entrance door

jason.brunette
Line

jason.brunette
Callout
(4) existing parking spaces 36'x18'

jason.brunette
Callout
Either side of sidewalk


P
MERIDIAN ?

TOWN SHIP‘Y

To: Planning Commission

From: Brian Shorkey, AICP, Principal Planner

Date: June 9, 2025

Re: Planned Unit Development #25012 (Hulett Road Estate), develop PUD

consisting of 6 single family residential lots on approximately 5 acres located
at 5360 Hulett Road, north of Jolly Road.

Giguerre Homes has submitted a planned unit development (PUD) proposal at the property at 3560
Hulett Road. This submission follows the expiration of the previously PUD approved on the site
(PUD #22-014, August 4, 2022). The PUD proposal includes the construction of five new detached
single-family homes on approximately 5 acres located on Hulett Road, along with the preservation
of the existing residence. Access to the six properties is from a proposed private cul-de-sac. A water
feature, called Paxton Pond, is included in the permanently preserved open space.

The intent of the PUD ordinance is to permit greater flexibility and more creative design of
residential developments than is possible under conventional zoning regulations. A minimum of
50% of the project area, excluding wetlands and floodplains, must be preserved as open space.

Zoning

The subject property is located in the RA
(Single Family-Medium Density) zoning
district. A PUD is allowed in any
residential zoning district on any sized
property. Detached single family homes
are proposed. The properties to the
north, east, and south are also zoned RA
while the property to the west, Okemos
High School, is zoned Rural Residential.

3

Okemos Public School

Okemas Pub lic Schol

£

Jolly

Zoning




Planned Unit Development #25012 (Hulett Road Estates)
Planning Commission (June 9, 2025)
Page 2

Master Plan

The property is designated on the Future
Land Use Map from the 2023 Master Plan
as Suburban Residential. The RA zoning
correlates with the Future Land Use
designation. The same Future Land Use
designation applied to the properties to
the north, east, and south. The property
to the west is Okemos High School and is
designated as Institutional.

ISEE

_l__i
3
o

| m %

=

Subject
Property

Okemaos Public School

Okemos Public Schogl

Physical Features

The site contains the historical
farmhouse, as well as Paxton Pond. The
Township GIS data shows the presence of
a wetland on the property, associated
with the pond. The wetland is 1.04 acres
in size and was delineated in April 2022.
The entire wetland lies within the Future Land Use
protected open space and all
development is outside of the required
40-foot setback. The Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) for Meridian Township indicates there are no
floodplains on the property.

Jally

Streets and Traffic

The subject site is located on the east side of Hulett Road. Hulett Road is a two-lane road designated
as a Collector Street on the Street Setbacks and Service Drives Map in the zoning ordinance. The
2023 Master Plan shows a proposed seven-foot pathway and paved shoulders on Hulett Road. If the
PUD is approved, the applicant will be required to construct sidewalks on the proposed cul-de-sac
on the subject property if. Those sidewalks will be required to connect to the Hulett Road pathway.

The applicant included an email from the Ingham County Road Department (ICRD) dated March 8,
2022. The email indicates that the ICRD is willing to approve a single private road entrance,
assuming that the entrance complies with other ICRD requirements. Specifics of the private road
design will be considered during site plan approval, if the PUD is approved.

Utilities

Municipal water is available in the vicinity of the subject site. Municipal sewer is located across Hulett
Road and would have to be extended to serve the proposed development. The location and capacity of
utilities for any proposed development will be reviewed in detail by the Department of Public Works
and Engineering during the Site Plan Review process.

The applicant included an email from the Ingham County Drain Commission (ICDC) date June 7, 2022.

While it was not a formal review of the PUD application, the ICDC did indicate that there are no county
drain outlets on the Subject Property and that landowner easements could potentially meet the ICDC

— A PRIME COMMUNITY
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.

meridian.mi.us



Planned Unit Development #25012 (Hulett Road Estates)
Planning Commission (June 9, 2025)
Page 3

requirements for stormwater discharge. Specifics of the stormwater design will be considered during
site plan approval, if the PUD is approved.

Planned Unit Development Standards

Planning Staff is providing the minimum PUD performance objectives for planned unit developments
for the Planning Commission’s review, as found in Sec. 86-439 in the zoning ordinance. Staff will
provide a more thorough review at a future meeting.

1. All applications shall provide for buffering between any conflicting feature of the design and
adjacent residential land use.

2. All applications shall ensure good internal and external pedestrian accessibility with a
minimum of conflicting points with the vehicular circulation system.

3. All applications shall minimize the cost of street construction and associated maintenance

costs while adhering to official Township construction standards.

All applications shall consider convenient access to public transportation.

All applications shall minimize the cost of utility construction and associated maintenance

costs while adhering to construction standards.

6. All applications shall take advantage of natural vegetation and topographic characteristics
to promote natural air conditioning and enhancement of air quality.

7. All applications should enhance and preserve wildlife habitat, with special attention to
wetlands and other unique habitats.

8. Exceptin unusual circumstances, stormwater runoff induced by the proposed development
shall be detained for storage and infiltration on the site.

9. All applications shall provide for active and/or passive recreation on the site in harmony
with the character of the open space.

10. A minimum of 50% of the project area allowed for density determination, excluding
wetlands and floodplains, shall be provided as open space. Deliberate efforts must be made
to preserve important landscape features and amenities of long term value and use these
features as key components of design.

11. All applications shall contain a housing type or types sufficient in number to maintain a
harmonious relationship with important site features, structures and adjacent land uses and
represent quality in design.

12. All applications shall demonstrate that there is adequate capacity of public streets, sewer
and water facilities to serve the development.

vl

Planning Commission Options

The Planning Commission may recommend approval as written, recommend approval of a revised
version, or recommend denial of the proposed zoning amendment. The ultimate approval or denial
of the PUD application is up to the Board of Trustees. Staff will provide a resolution at a future
meeting after collecting the Planning Commission and the public comments and fully reviewing the
application.

Attachments
1. Application.

e A PRIME COMMUNITY
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.

meridian.mi.us



Planned Unit Development #25012 (Hulett Road Estates)
Planning Commission (June 9, 2025)
Page 4

N

Site plan prepared by Enger Engineering, dated May 5, 2025 and received by the Township June
May 13, 2025.

Email from the Ingham County Drain Commission, dated June 7, 2022.

Email from the Ingham County Road Department, dated March 8, 2022.

Wetland Assessment prepared by Fishbeck, dated June 15, 2022.

Previous approval letter for PUD #22-014.

oW

e A PRIME COMMUNITY
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.

meridian.mi.us



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
PLANNING DIVISION
5151 MARSH ROAD, OKEMOS, MI 48864
PHONE: (517) 853-4560
FAX: (517) 853-4095

Planned Unit Development Permit Application

A Owner/Applicant JIM Gievene 3
Addressofapplicant GLOO PINE WOLLOW DL STE 100 EAST LANGING ML w3l

Telephone: ~ Work S11-323-3600 Hemre Ccll S V). LOo%- OB\D
Fax_S\1- 2>9-120\  Email_jgrquere @ giguere hemes, com

B. Applicant’s Representative, Architect, Engineer or Planner responsible for request: i
Name / Contact Person Ron Enger PE Enger 5“"‘“‘; wig and © b4cevivg
Address ®O5 N Cedav Rd~ P8 Box BT Magen W1 HUBESY-0087
Telephone:  Work_S\1-676- GS6S Home

Fax HoNe Email eV\:\Je\(S\ANb!\:\Jq € yahog.CO W

C. Site address/location 3560 Hulctt Road OWewss M\c\w:ja-\

Legal description (Attach additional sheets if necessary) _ ATTACHED
Parcel number 33-0L-0L =32 - Sjteacreage 5.0 ACRES

4006 -0\
D. Date of preapplication conference with Director of Community Planning and Development
Total acres of property __2:00 ACRES
Acres in floodplain 0.-00 pclnes Percent of total 9 %

Acres in wetland not in floodplain _ ©.5 | ACES Percent of total V0 %o
Total dwelling units &
Total units/acre Lol

Dwelling unit mix
Number single family detached C ferRemt Condo

Number duplex O  ferRemt Condo
Number townhouse o ferRent Condo
Number garden apt. style o for Rent Condo
Number other =) for Rent Condo
Will commercial be included? (circle one) yes Q) acres
Will all or part of property be platted? (circle one) yes o
Percent open space provide exclusive of wetland/floodplain & %o

I (we) hereby grant permission for member of the Charter Township of Meridian Planning Commission, Township staff
members and the Township’s representatives or experts the right to enter onto the above described property (or as

our application.)
igna r/e OVApp]icEﬁt[s) Date

/

Signature of Applicant(s) Date




PUD Permit Application

Page 2

E. Required Data: (check if attached)
Site location map ¥
Site plan _¥

Site analysis X

Schematic storm sewer layout X

Preliminary phasing plan

ffic study/ analysis (if required)

roducible contour map X
Ng%

atural fgatures analysis (if required)

Nl (9005
a/lfln s 2] 2098
Slgnaturf 5FA6pfri/cant % Date
/ Aeanux G AuevA
Prm\E/Name

: e
Fee: J? '/. 0dQ - Received by/Date:




3560 HULETT ROAD

sg /
HOOL DR/VEWAY ___‘-“
i
\ INE oRwe
—
\
GROSS AREA 5.00 AC 217,796 SFT
AREA IN 45" FOR HULETT ROAD 0.48 AC 21,014 SFT
AREA IN NEW STREET 0.60 AC 25,964 SFT
PROJECT AREA ALLOWED FOR DENSITY DETERMINATION 170,818 SFT
AREA IN WETLAND AND PAXTON POND 0.51 AC 22,359 SFT
150,304 SFT
~ AREA IN UNITS 1 THRU 6 1.69 AC 73,526 SFT
SCALE: 1”'=100 Nc)) AREA IN OPEN SPACE SHOWN 2.28 AC 99,140 SFT
0 50 100 / 422.91°
L / Bi4 82.7'
N |'III ' 6
PROPOSED 7° WIDE PAVED --"vfw 211 SFT,
TOWNSHIP PATHWAY S B 5
- 9,902 SFT [
: /L‘m' /

4
12,721 SFT

119.71"

87.5'

3
12,457 SFT

91’

ALLGY

OPEN SPACE

15°x112" EASEMENT
FOR TOWNSHIP

PATHWAY
m
a-
=3
Q L
S / : : A
x 85 ’ :
& SET BACK / 541.41 / WETLAND LIMIT DETERMINED BY
@ THE COMMON OPEN SPACE WILL HAVE TO MARX RETHE LLC NERL 2022 _/

BE RECORDED IN THE COUNTY REGISTER OF

OPEN SPACE DEEDS AS RESERVED OR DEDICATED BY \ /
MEANS OF A RESTRICTIVE CONVENANT o ;
AFTER THE FINAL SITE PLAN IS APPROVED = e /
FRRR T m " i
s ¥ asadl Y . PUD PLAN SHEET 3 OF 9
__c = »’:Np I,h:g”'l_a , H iii EEEEE I APPLICANT: JIM GIGUERE
805 N. CEDAR PO BOX 87 & MAY 2005

MASON, MICHIGAN 48854-0087
517-676-6565 ESE JOB 33—3442



3560 HULETT ROAD
J CONTOUR MAP

\ Uene DRy

SCALE: 1"=100’

4] 50 100

~ 1 WETLAND LINE BY
] MARX WETLAND
APRIL 2022

i

R

/
PAXTON POND /’
TOP OF WATER /
ELEVATION /
876.1 ,
DETENTION POND L“ —_ /J
TOP OF WATER ELEVATION
8699
'_; | (=1 S E"J" |If\i|€" ! .i
Bl 2 0 : PUD PLAN SHEET 4 OF 9
R jr INEERING o © APPLICANT: JIM GIGUERE

805 N. CEDAR PO BOX 87
MASON, MICHIGAN 48854-0087 1 JUNE 2022
517-676—-6565



3560 HULETT ROAD
SITE ANALYSIS

N\

OR1y
z = LUP/NE
g \ DRy,
. w
& = %
%8; Lz SCALE: 1”=100'
=%> ™~k
oF2 oo 0 50 100
Wy = I:B
a<2 0¥ THE MEADOWS SUBDIVISION
i35 A USE: SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL
©F | 7 -
L v YT g Fans—
I " — = 25 Ty A
208/ / @ /' UPLAND SOIL"TYPE e
5 / J % . CaA CAPAC /LOAM A .
Q o 0 — <
§ T < % %’] ’ ! %%
I ! %Dﬁ
[72] ! = ! » >
s g e
Y - § s
© = ‘\'--ﬂ_ A 9(5 —
day o 2o
T’E’._)_ e W
.. ' =W
=\ g
B i
DRy // GARAG , 875 2
D/ | WETLAND LINE BY
DRie 1 o K , e ] MARX WETLAND
/ | UPDAND SOIL TYPE| /oo, ]
/ <gr Al o (Gl CoA CAPAC LOAM— . ™ =
0T S qJ-.\.'b /s -
- = 3 X 7
/ ) T
/ '\I /
R . PAXTON POND /"
°E ._ TOP OF WATER /
=43 ' ELEVATION /
gz L 876.1
= DETENTION POND I
o TOP OF WATER ELEVATION THE MEADOWS SUBDIVISION
e 869.9 __USE: SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL
gl EhGER-SURNEVING — - PUD PLAN SHEET 5 OF 9
IS GENGINEERING -~ = APPLICANT: JIM GIGUERE
805 N. CEDAR PO BOX 87 1 JUNE 2022

MASON, MICHIGAN 48854-0087
517—-676—-6565



5560 HULETT ROAD
SCHEMATIC STORM SEWER LAYOUT

422.91’
82.7° j
SCALE: 1”=100" f'g;\DST(%Q‘
AT 6)
0 50 100 5 _\
4
. 60 ==250"
off = % PRivay
N O 3 o
~/] & UsLie
STR, N
N @
3 = ~

STORM SEWER

N
STORMW:\C?EEIQ ;(/iEGEMENT \. = PAXTON POND
—— 578 /
541.41° |
( / VARX WETLAND LLC APRIL 2022 —
EDGE OF :
WATER \ /
. _“H‘ . F
e T 4
EXISTING DETENTION POND
IN THE MEADOWS SUBDIVISION
TOP OF WATER ELEVATION 869.9
\__\‘
~ B
» g
252 PUD PLAN SHEET 6 OF 9
28 APPLICANT: JIM GIGUERE
1 5 MAY 2025
JOLLY ROAD ESE 33-3442




o T

}

3560 HULETT RUAL
WALK AND PATH - LAN

{ >
i | F
A3 [~ Z
- [ 2d .
o I
~N f '-' _i? o

o " . O e s
SCALE: 17"=100 Nj/ S

/ 42291
0 50 100 ]

; 54.a 827 ]

{ ] |

i / - .

/ = F | . ;
PROPOSED 77 WIDE PAVED —— bt f f /
TOWNSHIP PATHWAY i J."«- / - ;' WOOD CrHIP PATH

2 _ 5 WIDE
/ / / i
|
’ D
!

L / EXISTING /

/ ,f
\< { »'-:‘}
) .E‘If - HOUSE
1/
/
{
' B

L ﬂ'_L_ao_;_ |
NWARKe:

) .
OPEN SPACE
/
-
~

il RS
/
/ - —
/ ~ -
“EDGE GF]\“.

/
f / y
7 /

o .
0 DRIy g
\\ - / /
/5 /
[ —-.._|" -‘M\‘gg._ ;l
| =2 = 20 [/
I \_J < y /
) / — PAXTON POND
WOOD CHIP PATH / N
s 5 WIDZ - _
—_— —_— __J/ I,JJ) )
— 54147 /
Y [ imepan e
S5
ez
2 & \ /
¥ P aR R SHREARG - PUD PLAN sheer @ ofF 2
i NG ﬁ T ST RN L APPLICANT JiIM GIGUERE
s eRGIDRRRIN A ==
05 N. CEDAR PO BOX 8 REVISED 5 JUNE 2022
MASON, MICHIGAN 48854-0087 EST UOB 33—3442
517—-676—6565



5560 HULETT ROAD
STREET TREE AND SCREENING PLAN

e STREET TREE PER SECTION 86—473
S = SUGAR MAPLE (ACER SACCHARUM)
L = LITTLELEAF LINDEN (TILLA CORDATA)

\-‘-‘-‘

—~
“UPINE HULETT ROAD STREET TREES ARE SUBJECT
~ & TO ROAD DEPARTMENT APPROVAL.

SCREENING TREES — ARBORVITAE 4 FOOT
TALL AT PLANTING SPACED 6 FEET APART
AT LOCATIONS MARKED "'SCREEN™

SCALE: 1"'=100
422.91°

0 50 100 SCREEN 168 LFT

PROPOSED LITTLELEAF LINDEN
34 FEET FROM BACK OF CURB

0
D N
|
[=]
o
&l ~
x|l O
C a
~J

PAXTON POND

WETLAND LIMIT DETERMINED BY '
MARX WETLAND LLC APRIL 2022 —/

\ 7
“‘\‘.
5 0 0 2 9 B e __—/
P SUREVING PUD PLAN SHEET 9 OF 9
N erieNeE | APPLICANT: JIM GIGUERE
805 N. CEDAR PO BOX 87 5 MAY 2025

MASON, MICHIGAN 48854-0087

517-676—-6565
ESE JOB 33-3442



5560 HULETT ROAD
TYPICAL SETBACKS AND OFFSTREET PARKING PLAN

30
PROPOSED
REAR SETBACK

PROPOSED FRONT
SETBACK

PROPOSED 2 SPACES OFF STREET
PARKING 16°X25° = 400 SQ FT
TYPICAL IN FRONT OF GARAGE DOOCR

"l & SNG—— T pup PLAN SHEET 7 OF 9
CIC —fEReessne - APPLICANT: UM GIGUERE
805 N. CEDAR PO BOX 87 !

MASON, MICHIGAN 48854-0087 ESE 33-3442
517—-676—-6565



sty |
) .i,'--';'.rr
¥ g4l




(¥

Jim Giguere

-
From: Angelica Cosman <ACosman®@ingham.org>
Sent: Tuesday, June 7, 2022 1:13 PM
To: Tim Schmitt
Cc: Carla Clos;Jim Giguere; Ron Enger
Subject: [External}3560 Hulett Road
Attachments: Screen Shot 2022-06-07 at 9.01.54 AM.png

Good Afternoon Mr. Schmitt,

Our office has been contacted by Mr. Jim Giguere and Mr. Ron Enger requesting us to provide Meridian
Township information on potential storm water outlet(s) for 3650 Hulett Rd, Parcel # 33-02-02-32-400-012, a
parcel that Mr. Giguere is proposing for a Planned Unit Development. While this proposed Planned Unit
Development has not yet been submitted to this Office for review, we are happy to offer this information as a
courtesy to Meridian Township. It should not be construed by the project owner, developer or others as
formal submission to the Ingham County Drain Commissioner for site plan or drainage review, or for
representing these potential storm water outlets have been reviewed for adequate capacity or the
legal authorization for discharge.

Attached is a screen shot from our GIS showing the parcel and a number of storm water facilities that
are operated by public entities, potentially meeting ICDC's requirement for a positive public outlet for
storm water discharge. Within the Hulett Rd right-of-way, the Ingham County Road Department operates a
storm sewer that connects to Herron Creek Drain through the Jolly Road storm sewer (shown as the pink
dashed line on the attachment).

In addition, there are multiple potential outlets available discharging to the Meadows Drain (shown as purple
and blue dashed line on the attachment). The Meadows Drain is a county drain under the jurisdiction of
Ingham County Drain Commissioner. The Meadows Drain outlets to the same Jolly Road storm sewer
referenced above (shown as the pink dashed line on the attachment) and discharges to the Herron Creek
Drain, also a county drain.

None of the potential outlets are located on Mr. Giguere property, but with proper agency approvals and/or
landowner easements could meet the ICDC requirement for positive public outlet for stormwater discharge,
assuming engineering review shows adequate capacity and design.

If | can be any further assistance to Meridian Township in this review or any other, please do not hesitate to
contact me.

Respectfully yours,

ANGIE COSMAN

Drain Engineer
Ingham County Drain Commissioner's Office



P

" Ph: 517-676-8317



e m——-——-——-———

" g_. LLET | 1 £

s

4
)




-

Q)

Jim Giguere

From: Kelly Jones <KJones2@ingham.org>

Sent: Tuesday, March 8, 2022 3:21 PM

To: Jim Giguere

Cc: Ron Enger; Mark Swanson; Kellie Knauff

Subject: [External]RE: [External]Netzloff Property - Land Division Concept C - Drive Spacing
Drive Detail

Attachments: Hulett Rd Driveway Detail. pdf; Hulett Rd Concept C.pdf

Jun,

The parcel i quesnon, nuthned n red below 15 directl across trom Okemos Fugh School There s an extsang
traffic Lrsue on Fluleer R before and afrer school, frr which we have worked with the school to ooty mimize, bur

arr

it rernaies an sste Based on tlus condifion, we will nor allow muluple dovewar s trom rhis puruel nato Hulers

Road ¢ world be aiing r consider a sungle drvewas enrrance locared approzamarel halfwar herveen the
wouthern school divesa and Lupine Dace Porenmal access mar be obramed from rae Asalbe Dr & Hiacinrh s

inrer-ecnon wside the Meadows Subdisiston, but thar mar be dirficulr to achieve

[f vout intent 1s to subdivide this parcel, “ou would oni be gra ared a single entance, which would rhen require a

private toad to access rhe individual properties, rermimanng 1n a cul-de-sac.

Derauls relared ro rhe cul-de-sac sizing, sighr disrance, offsers, and vaoous other ICRD requurements are avadable ar

the following links:

hrros ddows pghann e Depaztment Road - 20D pespies. Rules, Joseundards s 2raed s 200 ccdures 20w

20D et s, S 2 B upers * e bl ' 20 Parades puds

hrrps _ decs o Deparnnenr. Read” 20Dpr pernuts e wedires . 20and 2Gudehnes 2ot 20Dy e

loping - 20Puble 20ROl pdr



i
an
uk
N



913 Executive Drive, Suite 100
S e ‘ Lansing, Michigan 48911

| Engineers | Architects | Scientists | Constructors 517882 0383 | fishbeck com

June 15, 2022
Project No. 220942

Keith Chapman

Charter Township of Meridian
5151 Marsh Road

Okemos, M1 48864 1198

Wetland Boundary Verification — WDV 22-03
Parcel No. 33-02-02-32-400-012
Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan

Dear Keith:

On June 2, 2021, Fishbeck staff conducted a field investigation and verified the wetland boundary for a
depressional wetland located at 3560 Hulett Road in Okemos (Parcel Number 33-02-02-32-400-012) (the Site).
The Site is located in Section 32 of Meridian Township (Town 4 North, Range 1 West). The Township wetland map
identifies Wetland 32-41, a 2.07-acre, emergent/scrub-shrub/open water wetland complex at the approximate
location of the delineated wetland.

The Site wetland was delineated by Marx Wetlands (Marx), as described in its May 3, 2022, report entitled
Wetland Evaluation Report: 3560 Hulett Road, Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan (Report). The Report
contained a Wetland Delineation Map that noted wetland boundary flags A.1 through A.22 (see attached). The
wetland extended onto the adjacent property east and south of the Site.

Site Investigation

The delineated wetland had a distinct boundary where cattail marsh abruptly transitioned to upland, old field
species. A catch basin at the east end of the wetland appears to control water levels in the wetland and discharge
stormwater to the local storm sewer. Google Earth aerial imagery indicates the wetland predates adjacent
residential development and was not constructed as a stormwater basin. in March 2005, the surrounding area
contained agricultural fields and the wetland had the same approximate size as its current configuration.

Fishbeck staff observed most of the wetland boundary flags noted on Marx’s Wetland Delineation Map. The ftags
were accurately placed, with one exception: Flag A.17 was approximately 10 feet upgradient from the apparent
wetland boundary, based upon the observed plant community. Five wetland boundary flags were missing: A.3,
A.6, A.15, A.18, and A.22. The relative location of these flags, as noted on the Wetland Delineation Map, was
consistent with the wetland boundary as observed by Fishbeck staff.

Regulatory Review

According to Michigan’s Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act (NREPA), Act 451, Section 30301(d),
wetlands "contiguous to the Great Lakes or Lake St. Clair, an inland lake or pond, or a river or stream" or "more
than 5 acres in size" are regulated by the State of Michigan. In addition, the Township regulates wetlands greater
than two acres in size which are not contiguous to a water body and wetlands between 0.25 acre and two acres in
size that are determined to be essential to the preservation of the natural resources of the Township.



Keith Chapman — WDV 22-03
June 15, 2022 Fishbeck | Page 2

The Report’s Wetland Delineation Map indicates the Site’s wetland is approximately 0.95 acre in size. It is located
approximately 175 feet northeast of a one-acre stormwater pond. Because the stormwater pond contains one
acre of permanent open water, the Site’s wetland is contiguous to a regulated water body and is regulated by
both the State of Michigan and the Township.

A Wetland Use Permit (WUP) is required from the Township for any of the following activities within wetlands
regulated by the Township:

e Placing fill or permitting the placement of fill in regulated wetland.

e Dredging, removing, or permitting the removal of soil or minerals from regulated wetland.
e Constructing, operating, or maintaining any use or development in regulated wetland.

e Draining surface water from regulated wetland.

In addition, the Township requires that all structures and grading activities during site development shall be set
back 40 feet from the delineated wetland boundary and a natural vegetation strip shall be maintained within
20 feet of the wetland boundary.

If you have any questions regarding this letter or any other wetland-related issues, please contact me at
616.464.3738 or ehtripp@fishbeck.com.

Sincerely,
i ! . f) ’ f-T- ¥
Elise Hansen Tripp, PWS

Senior Wetland Scientist

By email
Attachment
copy: Tim Schmitt— Charter Township of Meridian

\\CORP FTCH.COM\ALLPROJECTS\20221220942\WORK\REPT\WDV 22-03_WETLAND VERIFICATION LETTER. DOCX



Yy =
LEGEND

ASSESSMENT BOUNDARY

+ UPLAND SAMPLE POINT
EXISTING WETLAND

+ WETLAND SAMPLE POINT

= I'_‘.l -
WETLAND A
. £0.95 ACRES

- LIKELY EGLE REGULATED
LIKELY TOWNSHIP REGULATED

e

] ; i .

NOTE: THIS MAP LLUSTRATES AN APPROXIMATE DEPICTION OF THE
WETLANDS LOCATED ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY AS DELINEATED BY

WETLANDS, LAKES, AND STREAMS IN THE STATE OF MCHGAN.

9861 HIGH MEADOW DR
YPSILANTI, MICHIGAN 48198
(734) 478-8277

MARX WETLANDS, LLC.

!
b Rrgaé
=
4Nk
AEIHE
R EE
1 e
= z o
3] |5
& g: ]
FE
3= §
s
o
<
o =
@0 z
HER:
|5 g
w
AR
2 s =)
2 a
°1 8 =
8 3
M
i ]
= =
REVISIONS:
PATE: MAY 2, 2022
SHEETNO

01




CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN

Patricia Herring Jackson Supervisor m Courtney Wisinski Trustee
Deborah Guthrie Clerk M E D I A N ? Kathy Ann Sundland Trustee
Ue

Phil Deschaine Treasurer SHI p‘?
Frank L. Walsh Manager v

Marna Wilson Trustee
Scott Hendrickson Trustee

August 5,2022

Giguere Homes

Jim Giguere

6200 Pine Hollow Drive, Ste. 100
East Lansing, MI 48823

RE:

Planned Unit Development #22-014 (3560 Hulett)

Dear Mr. Giguere:

At its meeting on August 4, 2022 the Township Board approved Planned Unit Development (PUD) #20014
for the Planned Unit Development (PUD) application at 3560 Hulett Road. The PUD was approved subject
to the following conditions:

1.

Approval is in accordance with the submitted site plan prepared by Enger Engineering, revised on June
6,2022.

The waivers requested for lot size and building setbacks are recommended for approval as depicted on
the submitted site plan prepared by Enger Engineering.

The applicant shall obtain all necessary permits, licenses, and approvals from the Ingham County Road
Department, Ingham County Drain Commissioner, and the Township, as applicable. Copies of all
permits and approval letters shall be submitted to the Department of Community Planning and
Development.

The utility, grading, and storm drainage plans for the site are subject to the approval of the Director of
Public Works and Engineering and Ingham County Drain Commissioner and shall be completed in
accordance with the Township Engineering Design and Construction Standards.

No grading or land clearing shall take place on the site until the site plan has been approved by the
Director of Community Planning and Development and grading and soil erosion and sedimentation
control (SESC) permits have been issued for the project.

The proposed roads in the development shall be built to Ingham County Road Department
construction standards and shall be subject to the approval of the Director of Public Works and
Engineering.

Any wetland boundaries or setbacks located on or adjacent to residential lots shall be clearly identified
by posted signage notifying the property owner of restrictions related to grading, mowing, placement
of structures, landscaping, and dumping in the wetlands. The size, number, location, and language of
the signs shall be subject to the approval of the Director of Community Planning and Development.

The applicant shall construct the required seven-foot-wide pathway along the east side of the Hulett
Road frontage of the properties included in the development. The pathway shall be designed and
constructed in accordance with Township Engineering and Construction standards. The design and

— A PRIME COMMUNITY

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. meridian.mi.us



Planned Unit Development #22-014 (3560 Hulett)
Page 2

location of the pathway shall be subject to the approval of the Director of Public Works and
Engineering.

9. Street trees shall be provided along all internal roads in the development and along Hulett Road. The
species, size, and location of the street trees shall be subject to the approval of the Director of
Community Planning and Development.

10. The open space shall be reserved or dedicated by lease or conveyance of title, including beneficial
ownership, to a corporation, association, or other legal entity or by reservation by means of a
restrictive covenant or conservation easement.

11. Screening shall be required along the rear of lots C, D, E, and F, subject to the approval of the Director
of Community Planning and Development.

The next step in the process to construct the PUD is submittal for Site Plan Review. No construction shall
commence prior to Site Plan Review approval and issuance of all necessary permits. The effective date of
PUD #22014 is the date of the Township Board’s approval, August 4, 2022. Construction of the PUD must
commence within two years of final Site Plan Review approval or the PUD approval shall be void except
one, one-year extension may be considered by the Planning Commission if a written request is submitted to
the Department of Community Planning and Development prior to the expiration date.

If you have any question regarding this matter, please contact me at (517) 853-4576 or
shorkey@meridian.mi.us.

Sincerely,

Brian |. Shorkey, AICP

Senior Planner

cc: Timothy Schmitt, AICP, Community Planning & Development Director
John Heckaman, Chief Building Inspector

Younes Ishraidi, Chief Engineer
Tavis Millerov, Fire Inspector

— A PRIME COMMUNITY

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. meridian.mi.us



TOWNSHIP‘Y

To: Planning Commission

From: Brian Shorkey, Principal Planner
Date: June 9, 2025

Re: Parking Landscaping Updates

Staff discussed Sec. 86-758 - Landscaping with the Planning Commission at their regular meeting
on April 28, 2025. Since then, Staff has met and discussed previous work that Staff has performed
on Sec. 86-758.

Staff is now introducing a draft ordinance for the update of Sec. 86-758 - Landscaping, for
discussion, as well as the existing ordinance. The proposed updates are based on Staff’s experience
working with Sec. 86-758 during site plan reviews and research into current best practices for
parking landscaping. Staff is asking the Planning Commission to review the proposed changes to Sec.
86-758 and discuss this ordinance with Staff at a future meeting.

Attachments:

1. Sec.86-758 - Landscaping
2. Sec.86-758 - Landscaping - Draft Update Ordinance

— A PRIME COMMUNITY

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. meridian.mi.us



4/24/25, 1:21 PM

Charter Township of Meridian Landscaping.

Charter Township of Meridian
Thursday, April 24, 2025

Chapter 86. Zoning

ARTICLE VIII. Off-Street Parking and Loading

DIVISION 2. Off-Street Parking

§ 86-758. Landscaping.

[Code 1974, § 85-1.13; Ord. No. 2008-10, 7-20-2008]
In addition to any landscaping required in any particular district, all parking areas shall be landscaped in
accordance with the following provisions:

(1) Interior landscaping. Interior landscaping shall be installed and designed to control traffic, provide
shade, screen views into and within vehicular use areas, and separate the parking, circulation, and
service areas, in accordance with the following provisions:

a.

Landscaped islands or medians, having a minimum width of 10 feet, shall be provided to
separate parking bays from internal access drives.

Landscaped areas shall be provided throughout the parking area in the amount of 200 square
feet for each 10 parking spaces, subject to the following:

1. The nearest point of any parking space shall not be located further than 65 feet from the
edge of a landscaped area.

2. No landscaped area shall have a dimension less than 10 feet nor an area less than 200
square feet.

3. The area in excess of the ten-foot minimum width of medians separating parking bays
from internal access drives may be applied to the required parking lot landscaping area.

4. Required perimeter landscaped buffers shall not be applied to the required parking lot
landscaping area.

A minimum of two canopy trees shall be provided for every 10 parking spaces, meeting the
following standards:

1. Canopy trees shall be a minimum of two inches in caliper at time of planting.
2. Conifer trees shall be a minimum of eight feet in height at time of planting.

A minimum of 50% of each landscaped area, at time of planting, shall be planted with grass,
ground cover, shrubs, or other living vegetation.

Vehicles shall not be permitted to extend into landscaped areas. Landscaped areas shall be
protected from encroachment by the use of curbing, wheel stops, or similar means.

(2) Building perimeter landscaping. Parking areas and driveways shall be separated from the exterior
wall of a building, exclusive of pedestrian entrance ways or loading areas, by a landscaped planting

https://ecode360.com/print/ME35417?guid=28784062

12


https://ecode360.com/print/28784063#28784063
https://ecode360.com/print/28784064#28784064
https://ecode360.com/print/28784065#28784065
https://ecode360.com/print/28784066#28784066
https://ecode360.com/print/28784067#28784067
https://ecode360.com/print/28784068#28784068
https://ecode360.com/print/28784069#28784069
https://ecode360.com/print/28784070#28784070
https://ecode360.com/print/28784071#28784071
https://ecode360.com/print/28784072#28784072
https://ecode360.com/print/28784073#28784073
https://ecode360.com/print/28784074#28784074
https://ecode360.com/print/28784075#28784075

4/24/25, 1:21 PM Charter Township of Meridian Landscaping.

area of at least four feet in width. A minimum of 50% of this landscaped area, at time of planting,
shall be planted with grass, ground cover, shrubs, or other living vegetation.

(3) Maintenance of landscaping. All landscaped areas shall be maintained in a healthy condition and
kept free of refuse and debris. Dead, diseased, or missing vegetation shall be replaced within 30
days, or as soon as weather permits.

(4) Snow storage. To protect vegetation, interior landscaped islands less than 20 feet in each
dimension shall not be used for snow storage.

https://ecode360.com/print/ME35417?guid=28784062 2/2


https://ecode360.com/print/28784076#28784076
https://ecode360.com/print/28784077#28784077

ONO U WN B

15

ORDINANCE NO. 2025-XX

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF
MERIDIAN AT ARTICLE VIII, OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING, TO UPDATE THE STANDARDS
FOR ALL ZONING DISTRICTS

THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN ORDAINS:

Section 1. Section 86-758, Landscaping, is hereby amended to read as follows:

In addition to any landscaping required in any particular district, all parking areas shall be
landscaped in accordance with the following provisions:

(1) Interior landscaping. Interior landscaping shall be installed and designed to control traffic,
provide shade, screen views into and within vehicular use areas, and separate the parking,
circulation, and service areas, in accordance with the following provisions:

1. Streettrees shall count as both street tree and parking lot perimeter landscaping.

2. Landscaping is required to be outside of required building and parking lot
setbacks.

b. LandseapedareasParkinglotlandscape islands shall be provided throughout the parking

area in the amount of 200 square feet for each 10 parking spaces, subject to the following:

1. Nolandscaped area shall have a dimension less than 10 feet nor an area less than 200
square feet.

——One shrub per 50 square feet shall be planted on parking lot islands in addition to a
tree.

a. _All newly constructed buildings.

b. Expansion of a use that anticipates a 10% or greater increase in required off-
street parking spaces.
¢. A minimum of two canopy trees shall be provided for every 10 parking spaces, meeting
the following standards:
1. Canopy trees shall be a minimum of twe-2.5inches in caliper at time of planting.
2. Conifer trees shall be a minimum of eight feet in height at time of planting.

A iR YR-o 00 of e h rd aped e

d. Ground Cover. The types of ground cover listed below are required for any parking lot
landscape installation:

- - { Commented [KC1]: Outside setbacks




OCoONOOTULDWNE

a. Natural Vegetation. These are listed in theMichigan State University Native Plants

and Ecosystem Services Southern Lower Peninsula Regional Plant List, or those

species that occurred within nearby municipal boundaries prior to European
settlement, according to available historical and scientific evidence. These species

shall notrequire pesticide and herbicide applications, to eliminate toxicity to local
Wlldllfe and aquatic habltats

amended natlve soils and adapted plants. The depression is designed to pond and i

temporarily store stormwater runoff from adjacent areas, and to allow
stormwater to pass through the amended soil profile.
c. _Xeriscape. Landscaping which reduces or eliminates the need for irrigation shall
be encouraged. Xeﬂse&ae—a%a—n&s—m—nee—ﬁmm—s&eeu%eﬂ&s—%e&ﬁv—ﬂw;efme%mes—
d. Mulch. Sneshrubper 50 sguarefeet shall be planted on parkineleotislandsin

additienteatree-Ten percent of a parkinglotisland shall be a mulch planting bed
with flowers or ﬂowermg shrubs Mﬁ;asssha&eﬂ%uﬁalemen%e%he%ﬁ%euﬂd

a. Rocks & stones. Shall not be Dermltted as a primary Eround cover and may only

be used in building perimeter landscaping and in limited situations where
mulching may otherwise be problematic with storm drainage plans, as approved

by the Director of Community Planning and Development.
e. Vehicles shall not be permitted to extend into landscaped areas. Landscaped areas shall

be protected from encroachment by the use of curbing, wheel stops, or similar means.

[_]_Bulldmg perlmeter landscapmg Pa#emg—%eas—aﬂd—d—nveways—slmﬂ—be—sep&mted—ﬁmm—the

a—>Shall be planted along building walls visible from a public street or from a parking lot.
a._Shall consist of a mixture of landscaping and approved ground cover types.
b. Must have a minimum of 4 feet in width
(3) Maintenance of landscaping.
(4) All landscaped areas shall be maintained in a healthy condition and kept free of refuse and
debris.
a. Irrigation. Irrigation of trees and shrubs is required unless xeriscape plantings

have been approved by the Director of Community Development and Planning.
b. Landscape upkeep. Dead, diseased, or missing vegetation shall be replaced within 30

days, or as soon as weather permits.
c. Snow storage. To protect vegetation, interior landscaped islands less than 20 feet in
each dimension shall not be used for snow storage.

Section X. Validity and Severability. The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and the
invalidity of any phrase, clause or part of this Ordinance shall not affect the validity or effectiveness
of the remainder of the Ordinance.

Section X. Repealer Clause. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict therewith are
hereby repealed only to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and effect.

Section X. Savings Clause. This Ordinance does not affect rights and duties matured, penalties
that were incurred, and proceedings that were begun, before its effective date.

a
o

Commented [KC2]: https://www.canr.msu.edu/nativepla
nts/plant _facts/local info/south lower peninsula

Commented [KC3]: Double credit/ description/
requirements




e
P OWVWONOUD WNR

12
13
14
15

Section X. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be effective seven (7) days after its publication
or upon such later date as may be required under Section 402 of the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act
(MCL 125.3402) after filing of a notice of intent to file a petition for a referendum.

ADOPTED by the Charter Township of Meridian Board at its regular meeting this XXth day of
XXXXXXX, 2025.

Patricia Herring Jackson, Township Supervisor

Deborah Guthrie, Township Clerk



m
MERIDIAN

~——" __

To: Planning Commission

From: Brian Shorkey, Principal Planner

Date: June 9, 2025

Re: Regulation of Roosters in the Township

Staff previously informed the Planning Commission that Staff would be introducing language to
further regulate roosters in the Rural Residential district. Currently, under the Township’s backyard
chicken ordinance, roosters are generally prohibited, except on RR, Rural Residential zoned
properties. Over the past several months, we have received a number of complaints of roosters on
properties within the Urban Service Boundary, but still zoned RR. After discussions with the
Township Attorney, Staff has received draft language which we are now bringing forward for
discussion.

Several parcels inside of the Urban Service Boundary (USB) are zoned Rural Residential (RR), which
is the crux of the current problem. Because roosters are allowed by right in the RR district, and
parcels inside the USB tend to be more dense than outside of the USB, Staff has received several
noise complaints regarding roosters from neighbors. The proposed ordinance would tighten the
regulations for where roosters are permitted in the Township, alleviating some of the concerns that
have been raised this year by residents.

We look forward to providing a draft ordinance to the Planning Commission in the future.

Attachments:
1. Rooster Zoning Ordinance Draft Amendment

— A PRIME COMMUNITY

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. meridian.mi.us



RESOLUTION

At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian,
Ingham County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building Town Hall Room, 5151
Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 in said Township onthe  dayof  2025,at  p.m.,
Local Time.

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

The following resolution was offered by and

supported by

WHEREAS, the Township has established a need to regulate the keeping of roosters
within the Township’s municipal boundaries; and

WHEREAS, the Township has established that the keeping of roosters is consistent with
agricultural uses, which are minimally present within the Urban Services Boundary, and instead
are consistent with the rural character of the land located outside of the Urban Services
Boundary; and

WHEREAS, the Township has established that an acreage requirement is both an
effective method to limit noise nuisance and a common regulatory practice in residential zoning
districts; and

WHEREAS, permitting roosters on parcels within the Urban Services Boundary is
contrary to the future land use of the area as determined in the Township’s Master Plan; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT . ..



ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 86, ARTICLE 1V, SECTION 368
TO REGULATE THE KEEPING OF ROOSTERS

ORDINANCE NO.

At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham
County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building on ,2025,at  p.m,,
Township Board Member moved to introduce the following
Ordinance for a first reading prior to posting, publication, and subsequent final adoption, which
motion was seconded by Township Board Member

An amendment to an Ordinance to regulate the keeping of roosters in the One-
Family Rural Residential District and to maintain the public health, safety, and
welfare of the residents and visitors to the Township.

THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN ORDAINS:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 86, ARTICLE 1V, DIVISION 2, SECTION
368. Section 86-368 of the Charter Township of Meridian Code of Ordinances is hereby amended
to read as follows:

[Subsection (a) Unchanged]
(b) Uses permitted by right.
[Subparts (1) — (7) Unchanged]

(8) Raising and keeping of chickens and rabbits as nonagricultural use. Male chickens, also known
as roosters, are permitted by right only on parcels exceeding five (5) total acres. Roosters are not
permitted on parcels within the Urban Services Boundary.

The raising and keeping of chickens and rabbits accessory only to one-family dwellings in
the RAAA, RAA, and RA zoning districts is subject to the following requirements:

a. Registration.

1. Prior to the raising and keeping of chickens and rabbits on any property under
this section, the property shall be registered with the Department of Community
Planning and Development.

2. Only an individual living in a dwelling on the property shall raise or keep
chickens and rabbits on the property. A registration may not be transferred.

3. Notwithstanding registering with the Township, private restrictions on the use of
property shall remain enforceable and take precedence over the registration. Private



restrictions include, but are not limited to, deed restrictions, condominium master
deed restrictions, neighborhood association bylaws, and covenant deeds. The
interpretation and enforcement of the private restriction is the sole responsibility of
the private parties involved.

b. Standards. In addition to registering with the Township, the raising and keeping of
chickens and rabbits accessory only to one-family dwellings in the RAAA, RAA, and RA
zoning districts shall comply with the following standards:

1. In no case shall the maximum number of chickens and rabbits in any combination
exceed four.

2. Roosters shall not be allowed.
3. The sale of chickens, rabbits and eggs on the property is prohibited.

4. Chickens and rabbits shall not be kept in any location on the property other than
in the rear yard as defined by the zoning ordinance.

5. Chickens and rabbits shall be provided with a covered structure and must be kept
in the covered structure or an adjoining fenced area at all times. Covered structures
and fenced areas used for the raising and keeping of chickens and rabbits are subject
to all provisions of Chapter 86 (zoning), except the covered structure and fenced
area shall be set back a minimum of 10 feet from a side or rear lot line and structures
propose for reverse frontage lots shall be located no closer than 30 feet to the right-
of-way of the designated rear yard.

6. All structures for the raising and keeping of chickens and rabbits shall be
constructed so as to prevent rodents or other animals from being harbored
underneath, within, or within the walls of the structure.

7. All feed and other items associated with the raising and keeping of chickens and
rabbits shall be kept in containers or otherwise protected so as to prevent access to
or contact with rodents or other animals.

8. The covered structure used to house the chickens and rabbits and any fenced area
shall be kept in a sanitary condition.

9. This section shall not regulate the keeping of chickens in those areas zoned RR
(Rural Residential) or AG (Agricultural) where the raising of chickens is a
permitted use when conducted in compliance with the Michigan Right to Farm Act
and the generally accepted agricultural and management practices promulgated
therein.

[Subparts (9) — (19) Unchanged]
[Subsection ¢ Unchanged]
[Subsection d Unchanged]



SECTION 2. SEVERABILITY. The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared severable.
If any part of this Ordinance is declared invalid for any reason by a court of competent jurisdiction,
that declaration does not affect or impair the validity of all other provisions that are not subject to
that declaration.

SECTION 3. SAVINGS CLAUSE. This Ordinance does not affect rights and duties matured,
penalties that were incurred, and proceedings that were begun, before its effective date.

SECTION 4. REPEAL. All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby
repealed to the extent necessary to give this amendment full force and effect.

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance shall become effective seven days after
publication after final adoption.

ADOPTED by the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian at its regular meeting
this  dayof ,2025.

Scott Hendrickson, Township Supervisor

Angela Demas, Township Clerk



	Riverstone Ace SUP Application.pdf
	Binder2.pdf
	Ace SLUP App (1).pdf
	Supplement to Application
	ACE Lease (Redacted Excerpt).pdf

	SUP Storage Area Markups.pdf

	PUD 25012 - Application.pdf
	2728_001 3.pdf
	2728_001 2.pdf




